City of New Madrid
City Council Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, May 26, 2020
 6:00 p.m.

The Board of Aldermen met on Tuesday, May 26, 2020 at 6:00 pm via the internet. Adm. Richard McGill made the connections for the meeting. Mayor Bodi called the meeting to order.  A roll call vote was taken with Ald. White, Cravens and Riley participating online while Ald. Keene and Chism attended in person.

	OLD BUSINESS:

1. The minutes from the April 27th meeting were presented.    A vote was taken and all voted “aye”.  The minutes were adopted.

1. Visitors:  There were no visitors.

1. Resolution to amend the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and National Steel of America was presented.  Adm. McGill asked Atty. Bock to explain the changes that the City is proposing to the MOU.  Atty. Bock said that in the MOU the city had offered certain incentives to National Steel to locate it manufacturing, warehouse and distribution facilities in New Madrid.  Included in those incentives were certain financial obligations and support by the City to be obtained through the State of Missouri and the US Dept. of Agriculture.  Due to the current pandemic and the subsequent financial changes and reprogramming of funds by the State and Federal agencies, the funds to be obtained by the City in support of the development of the Steel Mill project, are no longer available.  In consideration of the mutual agreements in the original Memorandum of Agreement entered into by the parties on September 14, 2018, the City and Company agree to amend the original MOU and the extensions.  He then stated that Section 3 Chapter 100 Transactions will be amended by removing it entirely.  This Section obligated the City to loan the company $10 million dollars from funds obtained through a Chapter 100 bond issue.  Then Section 5 Public Infrastructure Improvements shall be amended by removing it entirely from the MOU.  This section obligated the City to obtain and spend $7 million dollars on infrastructure in support of the project.  The next change pertained to the obligations set forth in Sections 6, “sale of land improvements to the company and subsequent NMTC forgivable loan that contemplates the City spending $4,300,000.00 for site improvement and $2,000,000.00 for site development and $,000,000 for in kind work shall be amended by striking those sentences that describe the expenditures or work to be made by the City.  The final change pertained to Section 7 “NMTC forgivable loan for the construction of an electrical substation by removing it entirely from the MOU.  This section contemplates the City making a loan to the company in the amount of $4,000,000.00 to be used as leverage for the NMTC structure and construction of an electrical substation with the proceeds from the NMTC loan.  Atty. Bock said that National Steel may find some of these amendments objectionable, however the changes would protect the City financially and can be negotiated with National Steel if the financial environment improves and the project is able to move forward.
Adm. McGill asked if anyone had any questions.  Ald. White thanked Atty. Bock for his explanation of the changes, he said that he felt it was quite understandable.
Adm. McGill said that he expected we would get some push back from National Steel but we will deal with that when it comes up.  He said that he trusted Dennis Pruett of Missouri Partnership to make sure the City is covered and that we will see if National Steel wants to negotiate these changes.
Mayor Bodi read the resolution’s description twice over.  Ald. White made a motion to approve and Ald. Chism seconded.  All Aldermen voted “aye” and the resolution was approved.


1. City Administrator’s Report:  Adm. McGill informed the Council that one of our Linemen and his wife both have tested positive for the COVID XIX virus and are again quarantined.  The rest of the Electric Department were tested just that morning and instructed to stay away from the other city workers until the results come in.  After the City has that information, then a new plan of safety precautions will be formulated.
He then asked if everyone had been made aware of the serious turn Jimmy Harris’s health has taken.  He is now in St. Louis University Hospital and is expected to remain there for several weeks.  He met with 3 of the senior fire fighters and they said that they had pitched in and have the department under control.  Larry Treece a recently employed member in the Electric Dept. had been a fire fighter here in the past.  His experience will be very helpful at this time.  Adm. McGill also that Chief Higgerson would be monitoring the fire calls to make sure the firemen had all the assistance the Police Dept. could supply.
The next item he wanted to discuss was the City’s annual 4th of July celebration.  He said that he and the Mayor have come to a decision that the most prudent and responsible way is to cancel all daytime events that are usually held on the City lots along Waters Street, including the BBQ contest.  He said that they felt this would discourage crowds.  Hopefully, people will celebrate at home with their families and then come to the levee to stay in their vehicles and watch the fireworks.  After the media frenzy about the crowds as Branson this last weekend, he does not want to see anything like that here.  That could expose a lot of our citizens to the virus.  Mayor Bodi said that he liked that idea.  Ald. White pointed out that the events in Branson were not sponsored by the City.  Ald. Keene said that he thought that this was the most prudent decision.

The next item for discussion was the efforts to come up with a power source that would be the most affordable for the City and acceptable to the owner of National Steel.  They have reached a preliminary agreement with BMU, Ameren and the City with 3 different rates.  It is still a work in progress.  It has been shared with National Steel and they like what they are seeing.  Adm. McGill said that it is better than what we have currently.  Justin McCann is reviewing the service agreement now, so that he will have a clearer understanding of our needs.

Adm. McGill stated that the sewer issues that the City is having seem to be never ending.  The water department crew are working some very late nights, many after midnight and one until 4 a.m.  Ald. Keene said that he was afraid that they would get burned out.  There have been lots of issues in Holy Land and along Kingshwy and new ones popping up every few days.  Ald. White said that we need to move quickly, people are getting impatient and he did not blame them.  Adm. McGill said that the new homes built in the last few years have added to much for the 8” lines to handle.  Billy Cobb is working on an update on the plans for the water/wastewater lines.  He will need to review each neighborhood since there have been a quick deterioration in just the last 2 weeks.

Mayor Bodi said that he had talked to all the homeowners along the troubled streets and they have all been very understanding.  It is obvious that we have a lot of work to do but he wanted an engineer to help us make sure that what we do does not create a bigger problem somewhere else in town.  An overall plan needs to be made.  Ald. Keene said that this is liable to cost a lot of money.  Mayor Bodi said that is why we want it does correctly the first time.  Adm. McGill said that the water is an issue.  Until it recedes, we cannot fix much.  

Mayor Bodi said that the line crew would be working to string an above ground power line across the field where a lot of our problem lies.  Currently it is very dangerous for the water department to be working there.  That should make it a good bit safer once that is done.

Ald. White again said that he felt that people are becoming impatient.  Ald. Keene said that they have seen the water coming down just like we have.  Atty. Bock that the expected crest is not at 33’.   Mayor Bodi said that at 32.5 water will be spewing out of the manholes.  He then said we can do and are doing everything humanly possible with what resources we have to work with but we cannot keep the rain from falling.

Ald. White said that he had seen a couple in Holy Land sitting their dog into the small fenced cemetery for it to defecate in the cemetery.  He said he felt that they should be ticketed.  Atty. Bock said that they could be ticketed for having the dog unleashed since that would not comply with our leash law.  He suggested that a sign be mounted on the fence that reads “no dogs allowed”.  Then if the police officers see this continuing, they could act.  

There being no further action, Ald. Chism made a motion to adjourn and Ald. Cravens seconded.  A vote was taken with all Council members voting “aye”.  The meeting adjourned.


